

### **CORPORATE BUSINESS PLAN**

2019-2023



### **Contents**

| OUR VISION                                  | 3  |
|---|----|
| INTEGRATED PLANNING AND REPORTING FRAMEWORK | 4  |
| FORECAST STATEMENT OF FUNDING               | 7  |
| CAPITAL PROGRAM                             | 8  |
| SERVICE DELIVERY                            | 9  |
| VIBRANT AND ACTIVE COMMUNITIES              | 11 |
| ECONOMIC PROSPERITY                         | 14 |
| UNIQUE HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENT             | 16 |
| QUALITY SERVICES AND INFRASTRUCTURE         | 18 |
| INSPIRING GOVERNANCE                        | 21 |
| MEASURING SUCCESS                           | 25 |
| STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT                   | 26 |

Shire of Ashburton Administration Centre 246 Poinciana Street PO Box 567, Tom Price, WA, 6751 T (08) 9188 4444 F (08) 9189 2252

ashburton.wa.gov.au

# Our Vision

"We will embrace our unique Pilbara environment and lifestyle through the development of vibrant, connected and active communities that have access to quality services, exceptional amenities and economic vitality."





# Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework

This Corporate Business Plan 2019 – 2023, together with the Strategic Community Plan 2017 – 2027 Desktop Review 2019, is the Shire of Ashburton's Plan for the Future and has been prepared to achieve compliance with the *Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996*.

Under Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996 Regulation 19DA (3), a Corporate Business Plan is to:

- a) set out, consistent with any relevant priorities included in the Strategic Community Plan for the district, a local government's priorities for dealing with the objectives and aspirations of the community in the district; and
- b) govern a local government's internal business planning by expressing a local government's priorities by reference to operations that are within the capacity of the local government's resources; and
- c) develop and integrate matters relating to resources, including asset management, workforce planning and long-term financial planning.

In the preparation of the annual budget the Shire will have regard for the contents of the Plan for the Future in terms of Section 6.2(2) of the *Local Government Act 1995*.

Development of the Plan has also been influenced by the Department of Local Government and Communities Framework and Guidelines for Integrated Planning and Reporting.

#### **Strategic Community Plan**

Commencing in December 2016 the Shire of Ashburton community had a strong involvement and voice in the development of the Living Life - Strategic Community Plan 2017 - 2027. The community were invited to share their vision, aspirations and objectives for the future of the Shire of Ashburton, and the Strategic Community Plan was subsequently updated to reflect the community aspirations.

The Shire has since conducted a 2019 Desktop Review of the Living Life – Strategic Community Plan. The updated plan continues to provide a valuable insight into the key issues and aspirations held by the local community. Importantly for the Council, these views help to establish clear priorities and shape the visions, values, objectives and strategies contained within the Strategic Community Plan. The following five key strategic goals are defined within the Plan.

- 1. Vibrant and Active Communities;
- 2. Economic Prosperity;
- 3. Unique Heritage and Environment;
- 4. Quality Services and Infrastructure; and
- 5. Inspiring Governance.

# Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework (continued)

#### **Corporate Business Plan**

Achieving the community's vision and the Shire's strategic objectives requires the development of actions to address each strategy contained within the Strategic Community Plan. Careful operational planning and prioritisation is required to achieve the objectives and desired outcomes due to the limited resources available. This planning process is formalised by the development of our Corporate Business Plan. The Corporate Business Plan converts the Strategic Community Plan into action through the adoption of an Annual Budget.

Actions requiring funding will only be undertaken once approved within the statutory budget and subject to funding availability. Along with achieving the community aspirations and objectives, the Corporate Business Plan draws on information contained within the following strategic documents.

#### **Asset Management Plan**

The Shire has developed initial Asset Management Plans for major asset classes in accordance with Council's Asset Management Policy. The Asset Management Plan/Program forms a critical component of an overall Asset Management Strategy which addresses the Shire's current processes and sets out the steps required to continuously improve the management of Shire controlled assets.

Examples of fifteen (15) year asset management plans/programs, approved by Council are detailed in the following documentations:

- Fifteen (15) Year Urban Roads Renewal Program;
- Fifteen (15) Year Rural Sealed Roads Renewal Program;
- Fifteen (15) Year Rural Unsealed Roads Renewal Program; and
- Fifteen (15) Year Kerb and Gutter Renewal Program.

Capital renewal estimates contained within the Asset Management Plans identified above have been included in both the long term financial plan and workforce resources plan.

#### **Workforce Plan**

The Workforce Plan provides the workforce management and resource strategies necessary to deliver the objectives, outcomes and strategies of the Shire's Strategic Community Plan.

Workforce issues have been considered during the review of this Corporate Business Plan and the financial impacts of the Workforce Plan captured within the Long Term Financial Plan. A combination of workforce and financial constraints has influenced the prioritisation of actions within this Plan. The Shire is currently developing a new workforce plan in conjunction with a staff housing strategy.

#### **Long Term Financial Plan**

The Shire of Ashburton is planning for a positive and sustainable future. The Shire seeks to maintain, and where possible, improve service levels into the future while maintaining a healthy financial position.

During the review of this Corporate Business Plan, the Long Term Financial Plan was updated to confirm the financial capability to undertake the planned actions and ensure integration with this Plan. The results of this update are reflected within the Forecast Statement of Funding included within this document.

#### **Review of Plan**

In accordance with statutory requirements, the Corporate Business Plan is reviewed and updated annually to assess the progress of projects and realign the Plan's actions and priorities based on current information and available funding. The review of this Plan occurred in conjunction with a desktop review of the Living Life - Strategic Community Plan 2017 - 2027.

### **Forecast Statement of Funding**

The following Forecast Statement of Funding is extracted from the Long Term Financial Plan to provide an indication of the net funding available. The forecast statement should be read in conjunction with the full Long Term Financial Plan and its underlying assumptions and predictions.

#### **Shire of Ashburton**

Forecast Statement of Funding - for the period 2019 - 2023

\*\*Base Scenario - Version 1\*\*

|   | 1             | 2             | 3             | 4             |
|---|---------------|---------------|---------------|---------------|
|   | 2019-20       | 2020-21       | 2021-22       | 2022-23       |
|   | \$            | \$            | \$            | \$            |
| FUNDING FROM OPERATIONAL ACTIVITIES               |               |               |               |               |
| Revenues  | 27 024 000    | 20.600.744    | 20 462 505    | 40.050.775    |
| Rates   | 37,931,090    | 38,689,711    | 39,463,505    | 40,252,775    |
| Operating grants, subsidies and contributions     | 10,027,793    | 10,228,348    | 10,432,915    | 10,641,573    |
| Profit on asset disposal                          | 0             | 787,000       | 709,600       | 604,000       |
| Fees and charges                                  | 6,128,206     | 9,383,709     | 10,651,375    | 11,924,399    |
| Interest earnings                                 | 936,458       | 615,269       | 710,820       | 1,460,510     |
| Other revenue                                     | 424,848       | 433,346       | 442,009       | 450,846       |
|   | 55,628,695    | 60,321,289    | 62,597,808    | 65,525,439    |
| Expenses  |               |               |               |               |
| Employee costs                                    | ( 19,579,934) | ( 19,971,533) | ( 20,370,964) | ( 20,778,385) |
| Materials and contracts                           | ( 17,352,683) | ( 17,699,719) | ( 18,053,694) | ( 18,414,738) |
| Utility charges (electricity, gas, water etc.)    | ( 1,388,764)  | ( 1,416,533)  | ( 1,444,852)  | ( 1,473,745)  |
| Depreciation on non-current assets                | (11,130,012)  | ( 12,553,700) | ( 13,739,472) | ( 14,807,063) |
| Loss on asset disposal                            | 0             | 0             | 0             | 0             |
| Interest expense                                  | ( 209,219)    | ( 161,492)    | ( 117,215)    | ( 89,147)     |
| Insurance expense                                 | ( 1,450,954)  | ( 1,479,971)  | ( 1,509,576)  | (1,539,769)   |
| Other expenditure                                 | ( 877,573)    | ( 895,124)    | (913,026)     | ( 931,287)    |
|   | (51,989,139)  | ( 54,178,072) | ( 56,148,799) | (58,034,134)  |
|   | 3,639,556     | 6,143,217     | 6,449,009     | 7,491,305     |
| Funding Position Adjustments                      |               |               |               |               |
| Depreciation on non-current assets                | 11,130,012    | 12,553,700    | 13,739,472    | 14,807,063    |
| Net profit and losses on disposal                 | 0             | (787,000)     | (709,600)     | (604,000)     |
| Net Funding From Operational Activities           | 14,769,568    | 17,909,917    | 19,478,881    | 21,694,368    |
|   |               |               |               |               |
| FUNDING FROM CAPITAL ACTIVITIES                   |               |               |               |               |
| Inflows   |               |               |               |               |
| Proceeds on disposal                              | 280,000       | 787,000       | 709,600       | 604,000       |
| Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions | 30,168,457    | 19,650,000    | 26,335,000    | 23,510,650    |
| Outflows  |               |               |               |               |
| Purchase of property plant and equipment          | ( 17,806,585) | ( 20,857,280) | (6,186,242)   | (5,219,822)   |
| Purchase of infrastructure                        | (39,278,892)  | (26,548,540)  | (42,516,250)  | ( 28,456,950) |
| Net Funding From Capital Activities               | ( 26,637,020) | ( 26,968,820) | ( 24,657,892) | ( 9,562,122)  |
|   |               |               |               |               |
| FUNDING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES                 |               |               |               |               |
| Inflows   |               |               |               |               |
| Transfer from reserves                            | 13,533,174    | 13,162,015    | 3,564,948     | 0             |
| New borrowings                                    | 0             | 0             | 0             | 0             |
| Outflows  |               |               |               |               |
| Transfer to reserves                              | ( 930,341)    | ( 615,269)    | (301,603)     | ( 220,020)    |
| Repayment of past borrowings                      | ( 1,145,807)  | ( 1,171,951)  | ( 880,615)    | ( 556,137)    |
| Net Funding From Financing Activities             | 11,457,026    | 11,374,795    | 2,382,730     | ( 776,157)    |
|   |               |               |               |               |
| Estimated Surplus/Deficit July 1 B/Fwd            | 1,500,000     | 1,089,574     | 3,405,466     | 609,185       |
| Estimated Surplus/Deficit June 30 C/Fwd           | 1,089,574     | 3,405,466     | 609,185       | 11,965,274    |
| p   |               |               |               |               |

# **Capital Program**

A number of projects are forecast to be undertaken during the life of the Plan, which result in additional capital expenditure. The projects include new, expansion, upgrade and renewals of assets and are detailed in the forecast capital expenditure provided in the Long Term Financial Plan (LTFP).

A number of the projects listed in the LTFP are reliant on external contributions, should these not be received the project may be deferred until adequate funding is available.

Key projects included within this Plan are:

| Action  | Project  |
|---------|--|
|         |  |
| 1.3.1.3 | Develop Child Care Facilities in Tom Price   |
| 1.3.1.4 | Paraburdoo CHUB and related facilities   |
| 3.2.3.2 | Development of Pilbara Regional Waste Management Facility  |
| 4.1.2.1 | Tom Price Administration Building Replacement  |
| 4.1.2.2 | Plan and develop Onslow Marina   |
| 4.1.2.3 | Upgrade Onslow Jetty/Boat Ramp   |
| 4.1.2.4 | Upgrade and renewal of drainage infrastructure   |
| 4.1.4.1 | Advocate for the development of Beadon Creek Port Hub linking to the Shire's Airport infrastructure. |
| 4.2.1.3 | Road Infrastructure upgrades and renewals  |
| 4.2.5.2 | Development of Emergency Services Precinct in Tom Price  |
| 5.4.1.4 | Staff Housing Acquisition and Refurbishments   |

# **Service Delivery**

The Shire of Ashburton delivers services to its community in line with its values and the five key strategic goals set out within the Strategic Community Plan. Each of the five goals has several outcomes the Shire seeks to achieve over the next 10 years.

The table below summarises the desired outcomes under each of the five key strategic goals. Strategies and detailed actions to achieve these outcomes have been developed and are detailed on the following pages. As the Shire strives to achieve these outcomes, the community will be kept informed of the progress by means of the Annual Report.

| Objectives   | Desired Outcomes  |
|--|---|
| Goal 01 Vibrant and Active Comm  | unities   |
| 01: Connected, caring and engaged communities                              | People feel connected and actively involved in the community  |
| 02: Sustainable Services, Clubs,<br>Associations and Facilities            | High levels of community involvement in supporting clubs and organisations to be successful and sustainable, while optimising community facility use      |
| 03: Quality education, healthcare, childcare, aged care and youth services | A cohesive approach to service development, delivery and access to quality education, healthcare, childcare, aged care and youth services and facilities. |
| 04: A rich cultural life   | High levels of community appreciation for, and involvement in Arts and Cultural activities  |
| Goal 02 Economic Prosperity  |   |
| 01: Strong local economies   | A diverse and strong economy  |
| 02: Enduring partnerships with industry and government                     | Industry and government actively engaging with local communities and economies  |
| 03: Well-managed tourism   | Sustainable tourism activity benefitting local economies and the Shire as a whole   |
| Goal 03 Unique Heritage and Envi   | ronment   |
| 01: Flourishing natural environments                                       | The integrity of the Shire's natural environments are maintained  |
| 02: Leading regional sustainability  | The Shire of Ashburton supports and implements best practice sustainability practices   |
| 03: Celebration of history and heritage                                    | The Aboriginal and European history and heritage of the Shire is celebrated and valued  |
| Goal 04 Quality Services and Infra   | astructure  |
| 01: Quality public infrastructure  | Adequate, accessible and sustainable public infrastructure  |
| 02: Accessible and safe towns  | Transportation into and throughout towns are improved   |
| 03: Well-planned towns   | Distinctive and well-functioning towns  |
| Goal 05 Inspiring Governance   |   |
| 01: Effective Planning for the Future                                      | Ensure that Shire resources are optimally applied to achieving community outcomes, whilst maintaining financial sustainability                            |
| 02: Community ownership  | An engaged and well-informed constituency   |
| 03: Council leadership   | Council effectively governing the Shire, demonstrating effective governance and town leadership.  |
| 04: Exemplary team and work environment                                    | Highly-functioning Shire team that effective manages the Shires resources to build strong communities   |

### VIBRANT AND ACTIVE COMMUNITIES

The following tables reflect the future actions to be undertaken for each strategy. The prioritisation of the actions is reflected by a square indicating when the action is planned to be undertaken, or an arrow if the action will continue or be undertaken in the years beyond the four years of this Plan.

Objective 1.1 Connected, caring and engaged communities

Outcome People feel connected and actively involved in the community

| STRA  | TEGY  | ACTIONS  | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023<br>Onwards |
|-------|---|--|---------|---------|---------|---------|-----------------|
| 1.1.1 | Encourage and provide a range of opportunities to   | 1.1.1.1 Develop communication and engagement strategy  |         |         |         |         |                 |
|       | community members and<br>stakeholders to inform and<br>participate in decision<br>making  | 1.1.1.2 Engage community and stakeholders in accordance with Communication and Engagement Strategy   | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 1.1.2 | Establish a strategic approach to community development planning that focuses on building social capital, developing community capability and addresses social isolation and dislocation all residents across the Shire | 1.1.2.1 Undertake strategic     planning to ensure     integration of informing     plans for adequate     resourcing and service     delivery | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 1.1.3 |   | 1.1.3.1 Continue to deliver programs welcoming new residents and transient workers into the community  | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
|       |   | 1.1.3.2 Engage and celebrate local culture, both Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal   | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 1.1.4 | Continue to work collaboratively with the community to deliver town events.   | 1.1.4.1 Continue to work collaboratively with the community to deliver town events   | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |

### VIBRANT AND ACTIVE COMMUNITIES

Objective 1.2 Sustainable Services, Clubs, Associations and Facilities

Outcome High levels of community involvement in supporting clubs and organisations to be

successful and sustainable, while optimising community facility use

| STRA  | TEGY   | ACTIONS   | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023<br>Onwards |
|-------|--|---|---------|---------|---------|---------|-----------------|
| 1.2.1 | Develop and implement a cohesive, whole Shire strategy to encourage and support club and community group development through a focus on increased volunteerism and capacity building that utilises the skills and experience of residents and visitors | 1.2.1.1 Implement a cohesive strategy to encourage and support club and community group development                       | •       | •       | •       |         |                 |
| 1.2.2 | Review existing club and community organisations' governance and operating processes to identify possible synergies, collaborations or alternative models that can increase community involvement, reduce workloads and increase sustainability        | 1.2.2.1 As per action 1.2.1.1 Implement a cohesive strategy to encourage and support club and community group development | •       |         |         |         |                 |
| 1.2.3 | Collaborate with industry to encourage FIFO participation in their host communities through a concerted campaign to increase engagement in community activities; leisure and recreation pursuits   | 1.2.3.1 Collaborate with partners, key stakeholders and other organisations where appropriate                             | •       |         |         |         |                 |
| 1.2.4 | Prepare plans, programs<br>and schedules that provide<br>cost effective access and<br>optimisation of existing   | 1.2.4.1 Promote utilisation of community facilities within resource capacity  | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
|       | community facilities – and provide new or upgraded facilities to accommodate future needs  | 1.2.4.2 Provide community facilities as per asset management planning   | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |

### VIBRANT AND ACTIVE COMMUNITIES

#### Objective 1.3 Quality education, healthcare, childcare, aged care and youth services

Outcome

A cohesive approach to service development, delivery and access to quality education, healthcare, childcare, aged care and youth services and facilities

| STRA  | TRATEGY ACTIONS  |         | 2019/20  | 0 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023<br>Onwards |          |
|-------|--|---------|--|-----------|---------|---------|-----------------|----------|
| 1.3.1 | Play a leadership role in advocating to, and engaging with, relevant   | 1.3.1.1 | Continue to advocate on behalf of the community  | •         | •       | •       | -               | <b>→</b> |
|       | government and private<br>sector stakeholders to<br>foster a whole of Shire<br>approach to the provision<br>of quality education,                    | 1.3.1.2 | Provision of independent living housing in Onslow; advocate for independent living in Tom Price and Paraburdoo.                          | •         | •       | •       | •               | <b>→</b> |
|       | training, healthcare,<br>childcare, aged care,<br>youth services and facility  | 1.3.1.3 | Develop child care facilities in Tom Price   | •         | •       |         |                 |          |
|       | provision.   | 1.3.1.4 | Paraburdoo CHUB and related facilities   |           |         |         |                 |          |
|       |  | 1.3.1.5 | Advocate for the redevelopment or refurbishment of Tom Price and Paraburdoo Hospitals  | •         | •       | •       | •               | <b>→</b> |
|       |  | 1.3.1.6 | Implementation of the Youth Engagement Strategy  | •         | •       | -       | -               | <b>→</b> |
| 1.3.2 | Ensure the needs of changing communities are understood, planned and budgeted for and contributed to by government, industry and the private sector. | 1.3.2.1 | As per action 1.1.2.1 Undertake strategic planning to ensure integration of informing plans for adequate resourcing and service delivery | •         | •       | •       | •               | <b>→</b> |

## VIBRANT AND ACTIVE COMMUNITIES

#### Objective 1.4 A rich cultural life

Outcome High levels of community appreciation for, and involvement in Arts and Cultural

| а | CI | I۱۱ | /ľ | tı | е. | S |
|---|----|-----|----|----|----|---|
|   |    |     |    |    |    |   |

| STRA  | TEGY   | ACTIONS  | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023<br>Onwards |
|-------|--|--|---------|---------|---------|---------|-----------------|
| 1.4.1 | Encourage and support community involvement with and appreciation of, arts and culture   | 1.4.1.1 Encourage and support community involvement with and appreciation of, arts and culture | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 1.4.2 | Develop and deliver a<br>whole of Shire Cultural<br>Plan that includes 'place<br>management' approaches                                | 1.4.2.1 Develop and deliver a<br>whole of Shire Cultural<br>Plan                               | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 1.4.3 | Increase opportunities for children, youth and Aboriginal residents to be part of the wider community                                  | 1.4.3.1 As per Action 1.4.2.1<br>Develop and deliver a<br>whole of Shire Cultural<br>Plan      | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 1.4.4 | Continue to foster industry<br>and government social<br>investments and<br>participation in community<br>arts and cultural initiatives | 1.4.4.1 As per Action 1.4.2.1<br>Develop and deliver a<br>whole of Shire Cultural<br>Plan      | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |

### **ECONOMIC PROSPERITY**

#### Objective 2.1 Strong local economies

Outcome A diverse and strong economy

| STRA  | TEGY  | ACTIO   | ons   | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023<br>Onwards |
|-------|---|---------|---|---------|---------|---------|---------|-----------------|
| 2.1.1 | Develop local capability<br>and capacity to understand<br>and adapt to economic<br>trends and better meet<br>needs of local businesses                                    | 2.1.1.1 | Develop and implement<br>Shire Economic & Tourism<br>Development Strategy | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 2.1.2 | Develop policies and programs to support existing businesses and encourage business attraction to meet the changing needs of local and regional areas                     | 2.1.2.1 | Develop and implement<br>Shire Economic & Tourism<br>Development Strategy | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 2.1.3 | Proactively engage with government and industry to support business development and community enterprise and to plan for present and future training and employment needs | 2.1.3.1 | Develop and implement<br>Shire Economic & Tourism<br>Development Strategy | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 2.1.4 | Facilitate timely release of land to support the local economy  | 2.1.4.1 | Facilitate timely release of land to support the local economy            | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |

#### Objective 2.2 Enduring partnerships with industry and government

Outcome Industry and government actively engaging with local communities and economies

| STRA  | TEGY   | ACTIONS  |   | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023<br>Onwards |
|-------|--|--|---|---------|---------|---------|-----------------|
| 2.2.1 | Partner with industry and government to target their investment in stimulating more diversified business and economic development to benefit communities and the local economy | 2.2.1.1 Advocate for more diversified business and economic development in accordance with Economic & Tourism Development Strategy | • | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 2.2.2 | Develop a Shire Economic & Tourism Development Strategy that includes engagement with industry and government to support local economic development initiatives                | 2.2.2.1 Develop and implement Shire Economic & Tourism Development Strategy  | • | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |

# GOAL 2 ECONOMIC PROSPERITY

#### Objective 2.3 Well-managed tourism

Outcome Sustainable tourism activity benefiting local economies and the Shire as a whole

| STRA  | TEGY   | ACTIONS   | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023<br>Onwards |
|-------|--|---|---------|---------|---------|---------|-----------------|
| 2.3.1 | Work with the tourism industry, key stakeholders and agencies to collaboratively develop a regional Tourism Strategy that promotes the unique Pilbara offering of distinctive landscapes, seascapes and communities. | 2.3.1.1 Develop and implement Shire Economic & Tourisr Development Strategy   | n<br>■  | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 2.3.2 | Continue to plan for, invest in, and advocate for the development of key tourist infrastructure including increased accommodation options; tourism attractions and signage   | 2.3.2.1 Continue to plan for, investin, and advocate for the development of key tourist infrastructure in accordance with Economia Tourism Development Strategy | t       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 2.3.3 | Explore Aboriginal tourism opportunities   | 2.3.3.1 Encourage Aboriginal tourism opportunities in accordance with Economi & Tourism Development Strategy  | с       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 2.3.4 | Plan for improved tourism accommodation, camping grounds and associated facilities   | 2.3.4.1 Plan for improved tourism accommodation, camping grounds and associated facilities in accordance win Economic & Tourism Development Strategy            |         | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 2.3.5 | Engage with industry to manage the interface with tourism to optimise opportunities and minimise competing interests   | 2.3.5.1 Engage with industry as per Economic & Tourism Development Strategy   | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |

### UNIQUE HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENT

#### Objective 3.1 Flourishing natural environments

Outcome The integrity of the Shire's natural environments are maintained

| STRA  | ATEGY   | ACTIONS   | 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 | 2023<br>Onwards |
|-------|---|---|---------------------------------|-----------------|
| 3.1.1 | Partner with government agencies, industry, traditional owners, nongovernment organisations, local governments, research institutions, pastoralists and the community to better manage natural assets and deliver improved conservation outcomes that reflect the region's high biodiversity and landscape values | 3.1.1.1 Advocate for the protection of natural assets and sustainable use of resources and utilities            |                                 | <b>→</b>        |
| 3.1.2 | Improve recreational access<br>to natural environments with<br>a focus on signage, access<br>and safety   | 3.1.2.1 Improve recreational access<br>to natural environments with<br>a focus on signage, access<br>and safety |                                 | <b>→</b>        |

#### Objective 3.2 Leading regional sustainability

Outcome The Shire of Ashburton supports and implements best practice sustainability practices

| STRATEGY |  | GY ACTIONS   |                  | 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Onw |   |   |          |  |
|----------|--|--|------------------|-------------------------------------|---|---|----------|--|
| 3.2.1    | Promote and encourage protection of natural assets and sustainable use of resources and utilities  | 3.2.1.1 As per Action 3.1.1.1  Advocate for the protection of natural assets and sustainable use of resource and utilities | S                | •                                   | • | • | <b>→</b> |  |
| 3.2.2    | Collaborate with State Government and Rio Tinto (the providers of water resources in the Shire) to promote water-wise practices across the Shire | 3.2.2.1 Collaborate with stakeholders to promote water-wise practices across the Shire                                     | •                | •                                   | • | • | <b>→</b> |  |
| 3.2.3    | Encourage and implement improved waste minimisation practices, including proactive   | 3.2.3.1 Encourage and implement improved waste minimisation practices  | n $\blacksquare$ | •                                   | • | • | <b>→</b> |  |
|          | approaches to recycling and reuse  | 3.2.3.2 Development and operation of the Pilbara Regional Waste Management Facility  |                  | •                                   |   |   | <b>→</b> |  |

### UNIQUE HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENT

#### Objective 3.3 Celebration of history and heritage

Outcome The Aboriginal and European history and heritage of the Shire is celebrated and valued

| STRATEGY  | ACTIONS  | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023<br>Onwards |
|---|--|---------|---------|---------|---------|-----------------|
| 3.3.1 Develop strategies to recognise and celebrate the Aboriginal and Non-Aboriginal history and heritage of the | 3.3.1.1 Recognise and celebrate the<br>Shire's Aboriginal and Non-<br>Aboriginal history and<br>heritage | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| Shire, including providing<br>cultural awareness training<br>opportunities  | 3.3.1.2 Support and encourage cultural awareness opportunities   | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |

## QUALITY SERVICES AND INFRASTRUCTURE

#### Objective 4.1 Quality public infrastructure

Outcome Adequate, accessible and sustainable public infrastructure

| STRA  | TEGY  | ACTIONS  | 2019/20 20 | )20/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023<br>Onwards |
|-------|---|--|------------|--------|---------|---------|-----------------|
| 4.1.1 | Advocate to, and partner with, government to facilitate the development of the Tom Price – Karratha Road to link Tom Price and Paraburdoo to the Pilbara Cities   | 4.1.1.1 Advocate to, and partner with stakeholders to facilitate the development of the Tom Price – Karratha Road to link Tom Price and Paraburdoo to the Pilbara Cities | •          | •      | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 4.1.2 | Provide and maintain affordable infrastructure that serves the current and future needs of the community,   | 4.1.2.1 Provide and maintain infrastructure in accordance with asset management plans  | •          | •      | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
|       | environment, industry and business  | 4.1.2.2 Plan and develop Onslow Marina   |            |        |         |         |                 |
|       |   | 4.1.2.3 Upgrade Onslow Jetty/Boat<br>Ramp  | •          |        |         |         |                 |
|       |   | 4.1.2.4 Upgrade and renewal of drainage infrastructure   | •          |        |         |         | <b>→</b>        |
| 4.1.3 | Actively engage with State Government, Aboriginal Corporations and communities to support strategies to effectively manage the planned transition of municipal services in Aboriginal communities (upon the completion of the Aboriginal Communities Review by the WA State Government) | 4.1.3.1 Advocate for the provision of appropriate services to all of the community   | •          | •      | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 4.1.4 | Actively advocate for the effective supply of utilities and services that meet commercial, industrial and retail needs.   | 4.1.4.1 Advocate for the development of Beadon Creek Port Hub linking to the Shire's Airport infrastructure.   | •          | •      | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |

## QUALITY SERVICES AND INFRASTRUCTURE

#### Objective 4.2 Accessible and safe towns

Outcome Transportation into and throughout towns are improved

| STRA  | TEGY  | ACTIONS   | 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/2 | 202:<br>23 Onwa |
|-------|---|---|--------------------------------|-----------------|
| 4.2.1 | Advocate to, and partner with, key government and industry to develop an air  | 4.2.1.1 Advocate and partner with key stakeholders to develop an air strip at Tom Price   |                                | <b>→</b>        |
|       | strip at Tom Price and improve public transport and roads between the Shire's   | 4.2.1.2 Advocate to improve public transport and roads between the Shire's towns  |                                | <b>→</b>        |
|       | towns   | 4.2.1.3 Maintain and improve road infrastructure in accordance with asset management plans  |                                | <b>→</b>        |
|       |   | 4.2.1.4 Maintain and improve air transport infrastructure in accordance with asset management plans   |                                | <b>→</b>        |
| 4.2.2 | Continue to improve and maintain condition of footpaths, cycleway, kerbs and signage to provide enhanced amenities and connections with towns                       | 4.2.2.1 Maintain and improve footpaths, cycleway, kerbs and signage in line with asset management planning  |                                | <b>→</b>        |
| 1.2.3 | Maintain and improved<br>existing public lighting and<br>increase coverage of lighting<br>where appropriate   | 4.2.3.1 Advocate for improved public lighting where appropriate   |                                | <b>→</b>        |
| 1.2.4 | Shire to continue to work<br>with police, stakeholders and<br>the community to promote<br>positive crime prevention<br>and safety initiatives                       | 4.2.4.1 Continue to work with police, stakeholders and the community to promote positive crime prevention and safety initiatives                        |                                | <b>→</b>        |
| 1.2.5 | Effectively communicate and manage natural hazards, risks and other community emergencies through the development of an emergency management strategy that includes | 4.2.5.1 Continue to effectively communicate emergency management plans and educate stakeholders and community on how to prevent and address emergencies |                                | <b>→</b>        |
|       | educating stakeholders and community on how to prevent and address  | 4.2.5.2 Development of Emergency<br>Services Precinct in Tom<br>Price   |                                |                 |
|       | emergencies   | 4.2.5.3 Advocate for a Tom Price RFDS Airstrip  |                                | <b>→</b>        |

# QUALITY SERVICES AND INFRASTRUCTURE

#### Objective 4.3 Well-planned towns

Outcome Distinctive and well-functioning towns

| STRATEGY  | ACTIONS   | 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Onwards |
|---|---|---|
| 4.3.1 Continue to monitor industry and economic trends and ensure town planning schemes respond appropriately to future housing, accommodation and commercial needs | 4.3.1.1 Continue to monitor industry and economic trends and ensure town planning schemes respond appropriately to future housing, accommodation and commercial needs | ■ ■ ■ →                                 |
| 4.3.2 Ensure any new buildings and developments are sensitive to an integrate appropriately with the natural and built environments                                 | 4.3.2.1 Continue to ensure any new buildings and developments are sensitive to, and integrate appropriately with the natural and built environments                   | ■ ■ ■ →                                 |
| 4.3.3 Incorporate social planning and ecological sustainable development principles in planning strategies and policies   | 4.3.3.1 Consider social planning and ecological sustainable development principles in planning strategies and policies  | ■ ■ ■ →                                 |
| 4.3.4 Continue to provide and maintain a range of public open spaces with high quality amenities.   | 4.3.4.1 Continue to provide and maintain a range of public open spaces in accordance with asset management plans  | ■ ■ ■ →                                 |

### **INSPIRING GOVERNANCE**

#### Objective 5.1 Effective Planning for the Future

Outcome Ensure that Shire resources are optimally applied to achieving community outcomes, whilst maintaining financial sustainability

|       | •  | •   |         |         |         |         |                 |
|-------|--|---|---------|---------|---------|---------|-----------------|
| STRA  | ATEGY  | ACTIONS   | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023<br>Onwards |
| 5.1.1 | Ensure the Strategic Community Plan and Corporate Business Plan are used effectively to guide all planning and decision making in the delivery of                          | 5.1.1.1 As per Action 1.1.2.1  Undertake strategic planning to ensure integration of informing plans for adequate resourcing and service delivery | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
|       | quality services and facilities  | 5.1.1.2 Review, update and implement asset management plans   | •       | •       |         |         | <b>→</b>        |
| 5.1.2 | Regular communication and engagement with stakeholders and community to generate a sound understanding, support and buy-in to the Shire's plans and strategies             | 5.1.2.1 As per Action 1.1.1.1  Develop communication and engagement strategy  | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 5.1.3 | Monitor trends, anticipate needs and capitalise on opportunities to build strong communities   | 5.1.3.1 As per Action 1.2.4.1  Promote utilisation of community facilities within resource capacity   | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 5.1.4 | Develop a Reconciliation Action Plan and seek greater Aboriginal engagement and representation in decision making  | 5.1.4.1 Develop a Reconciliation Action Plan and seek greater Aboriginal engagement and representation in decision making                         | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 5.1.5 | Regular monitor, review and revise the Strategic Community Plan and develop a four year Corporate Business Plan that reflects the evolving community needs and aspirations | 5.1.5.1 As per Action 1.1.2.1  Undertake strategic planning to ensure integration of informing plans for adequate resourcing and service delivery | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |

# GOAL 5 INSPIRING GOVERNANCE

#### Objective 5.2 Community ownership

| Outcome / | An engaged   | and well-informed | constituency |
|-----------|--------------|-------------------|--------------|
|           | III Chigagea | and wen interned  | COLIGITACITO |

| STRA  | TEGY   | ACTIONS  | 2019/20 2020/2 | 21 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023<br>Onwards |
|-------|--|--|----------------|------------|---------|-----------------|
| 5.2.1 | Ensure equitable and broad representation on committees and in community engagement activities to ensure there is well informed decision making  | 5.2.1.1 As per Action 1.1.1.1  Develop communication and engagement strategy   |                | •          | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 5.2.2 | Ensure broad participation<br>and diverse representation<br>in research, planning and<br>decision making   | 5.2.2.1 As per Action 1.1.1.1  Develop communication and engagement strategy   |                | •          | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 5.2.3 | Develop a communications<br>and engagement strategy<br>that ensures the provision of<br>quality information on Shire<br>activities and uses modern<br>methods to foster high levels<br>of community awareness<br>and involvement | 5.2.3.1 As per Action 1.1.1.1  Develop communication and engagement strategy   |                | •          | •       | <b>→</b>        |
| 5.2.4 | Be a strong voice and<br>advocate for the local<br>community in regional, state<br>and federal settings  | 5.2.4.1 As per Action 1.3.1.1  Continue to deliver programs welcoming new residents and transient workers into the community |                | •          | •       | <b>→</b>        |

# INSPIRING GOVERNANCE

Objective 5.3 Council leadership

Outcome Council effectively governing the Shire, demonstrating effective governance and

2022

town leadership

| STRA  | RATEGY ACTIONS   |  | ONS 2019/20 |   | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 3<br>Onwards |
|-------|--|--|-------------|---|---------|---------|--------------|
| 5.3.1 | Support and strengthen the effectiveness of Councillors, and educate the community   | 5.3.1.1 As per Action 1.1.1.1  Develop communication and engagement strategy   | •           | • | •       | •       | <b>→</b>     |
|       | on their roles, responsibilities and   | 5.3.1.2 Support and strengthen the effectiveness of Councillors  |             |   |         |         | <b>→</b>     |
|       | achievements   | 5.3.1.2 Seek to educate the community on the roles, responsibilities and achievements of Council   | •           | - | •       | •       | <b>→</b>     |
|       |  | 5.3.1.3 Continue to provide quality regulatory services  | -           |   |         |         | <b>→</b>     |
|       |  | 5.3.1.4 Council to continue to<br>advocate for State<br>Government action on the<br>closure of Wittenoom and<br>rehabilitation of surrounding<br>areas including roads | •           | • | •       | •       | <b>→</b>     |
| 5.3.2 | Improve civic engagement<br>and leadership to increase<br>the involvement of under-<br>represented groups<br>including youth, the<br>Aboriginal community and<br>seniors | 5.3.2.1 As per Action 1.1.1.1  Develop communication and engagement strategy   | •           | • | •       | •       | <b>→</b>     |

# GOAL 5 INSPIRING GOVERNANCE

#### Objective 5.4 Exemplary team and work environment

Outcome Highly-functioning Shire team that effectively manages the Shire's resources to build strong communities

| STRATEGY |   | ACTIONS   | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023<br>Onwards |
|----------|---|---|---------|---------|---------|---------|-----------------|
| 5.4.1    | Develop an inspired and engaged workforce through the provision of a targeted workforce development plan that includes strategies to attract and retain skilled and capable staff | 5.4.1.1 Undertake staff engagement survey to identify strategies to attract and retain staff          | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
|          |   | 5.4.1.2 Review and maintain  Workforce Plan and  associated plans                                     | -       |         |         |         | <b>→</b>        |
|          |   | 5.4.1.3 Implement strategies with Workforce Plan  | •       |         |         |         | <b>→</b>        |
|          |   | 5.4.1.4 Staff Housing Acquisition and Refurbishments  |         |         |         |         | <b>→</b>        |
| 5.4.2    | Promote an innovative and engaging corporate culture underpinned by the organisation's vision.  | 5.4.2.1 Promote an innovative and engaging corporate culture underpinned by the organisation's vision | •       | •       | •       | •       | <b>→</b>        |
|          |   | 5.4.2.2 Promote a safe work culture   |         |         |         |         | <b>→</b>        |

### **Measuring Success**

The intended outcome of this Plan is to align the community's visions and aspirations for the future of the Shire of Ashburton to the Shire's objectives. Success will be measured by both quantifiable and non-quantifiable outcomes.

Strategic performance indicators provide an indication of whether the Shire is meeting the objectives and will be monitored and reported. The strategic performance indicators and desired trend for each objective are provided in the table below.

## GOAL 1 VIBRANT AND ACTIVE COMMUNITIES

| Performance Indicator                                   | Desired Trend   |
|---|---|
| Community participation levels in activities and events | Maintain / Increase number of participants/attendees    |
| Recreation facilities usage rates                       | Maintain / Increase                                     |
| Media activity  | Maintain level of communication                         |
| Community Survey  | Maintain / Increase satisfaction with service provision |

# GOAL 2 ECONOMIC PROSPERITY

| Performance Indicator                   | Desired Trend       |
|---|---------------------|
| Economic & Tourism Development Strategy | Implement strategy  |
| Regional Tourism<br>Strategy            | Develop strategy    |
| Visitor Numbers                         | Maintain / Increase |

## GOAL 3 UNIQUE HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENT

| Performance Indicator                        | Desired Trend       |
|--|---------------------|
| Compliance with waste management regulations | Maintain compliance |

# GOAL 4 QUALITY SERVICES AND INFRASTRUCTURE

| Performance Indicator                                    | Desired Trend                                  |
|--|--|
| Building /<br>Infrastructure<br>Maintenance /<br>Renewal | In line with budget and asset management plans |
| Roads Condition  | Implementation of<br>Asset Management<br>Plan  |
| Statutory Asset<br>Management Ratios                     | Maintain healthy ratios                        |

### GOAL 5 INSPIRING GOVERNANCE

| Performance Indicator                   | Desired Trend                                   |
|---|---|
| Elected Members representation          | Maintain participation on boards and committees |
| Statutory Financial Ratios              | Maintain healthy ratios                         |
| Currency of Strategic Plans and Reports | Maintain currency                               |
| Employee Retention Rates                | Maintain / Increase                             |

# **Strategic Risk Management**

It is important to consider the external and internal context in which the Shire of Ashburton operates, relative to risk, in order to understand the environment in which the Shire seeks to achieve its strategic objectives.

The external and internal factors identified and considered during the preparation of this Corporate Business Plan 2019 – 2023 are set out below.

| External Factors   | Internal Factors  |
|--|---|
| Increasing community expectations in relation to service levels and service delivery | The objectives and strategies contained in the current Strategic Community Plan |
| Rapid changes in information technology changing the service delivery environment    | The timing and actions contained in the Corporate Business Plan                 |
| Increased compliance requirements due to Government Policy and Legislation           | Organisational size, structure, activities and location                         |
| Cost shifting by Federal and State<br>Governments                                    | Human resourcing levels and staff retention                                     |
| Reducing external funding for infrastructure and operations                          | The financial capacity of the Shire   |
| Changes in mining and pastoral practices and the associated social impacts           | Allocation of resources to achieve strategic outcomes                           |
| Climate change and subsequent response   | Maintenance of corporate records  |
| Historic contamination liabilities   |   |

#### **Disclaimer**

This Plan has been prepared by the Shire of Ashburton.

This Plan contains quantitative and qualitative statements, including projections, estimates, opinions and forecasts concerning the anticipated future performance of the Shire of Ashburton, based on a large number of assumptions, and will be, subject to significant uncertainties and contingencies many, if not all, of which are outside the control of the Shire of Ashburton.

This Plan is supplied in good faith for public information purposes and the Shire accepts no responsibility for any loss occasioned by any person acting or refraining from action as a result of reliance on the Plan.

#### **Review of the Corporate Business Plan**

In accordance with statutory requirements, the Corporate Business Plan is reviewed and updated annually to assess the progress of projects and realign the Plan's actions and priorities based on current information and available funding. The review of this Plan occurred in conjunction with a desktop review of the Strategic Community Plan in 2019.

#### **Document Management**

Version 2019 – 2023 | V2.2

Status Final | Adopted

Date of Adoption 18 June 2019